City of Springdale Council

October 1, 2014


President of Council Tom Vanover called Council to order on October 1, 2014, at 7:00 p.m. 

The governmental body and those in attendance recited the Pledge of Allegiance.
Mrs. McNear took roll call.  Council members Diehl, Emerson, Harlow, Hawkins, Knox, Squires, and Vanover were present.  

The minutes of September 17, 2014 were considered.  Mr. Squires made a motion to adopt and Mrs. Emerson seconded.  Mr. Diehl abstained.  The minutes were approved with six affirmative votes.   
Communications:

Mrs. McNear:  We do have one item this evening.  This is a letter that is dated September 8, 2014 and it's from Jean Rohling, 824 Kingfisher Lane, Cincinnati, 45246.  It's titled "Save the Murals".  The letter reads as follows: 

"My name is Jean Rohling.  My husband Joe and I have lived in the Princeton City School District for over 55 years.  All three of our children attended K-12 in the district and have become successful adults partly because of the Princeton education.  We have been involved in Princeton affairs and we were founding members of the Princeton Human Relations Commission.  I jointly headed a successful tax levy campaign many years ago.  After these experiences, I was hired by Dr. John Payton as a staff person for RELIS due to my experience as a mentor and tutor in an inner-city school before the Princeton - Lincoln Heights merger.  I was employed by the district for twelve years including my time with RELIS and in the high school Fine Arts Library.  I have been a docent at the Cincinnati Art Museum for 26 years.

As you can see, we are committed to the Princeton District.  We believe the mosaic murals that adorn the front of the soon-to-be-demolished high school building represent a rich part of the Princeton City's School District history.  They are signature mid-century art pieces that need to be saved and incorporated into the new community facility.  We are aware the current building is to be torn down next year and that saving the murals would be a costly project; however, I think we could save the murals by getting clubs and community and civic groups in the district to adopt a mural.  I suggest we contact each community with a packet explaining the Save the Mural project (see attachments).  Each Council would be requested to contact the organizations within that village or city.  

When I originally came up with the Save the Murals idea, I contacted Dr. Pack and Dr. Hawkins.  Enclosed are the original contact letters that I sent and received.  The idea was tabled for a while but I think the project deserves to be reconsidered.  I personally do not have the expertise to run such a campaign but would be willing to talk it up with various community groups in which I am involved and will help in any other way that I am capable.  The Alumni Association seems to be an obvious choice group to begin the campaign, as it has many talented individuals and Princeton fans who could contribute their talents and skills.





Sincerely, Jean Rohling"

There are pictures as well as a couple of other letters and emails that are attached.  If anyone would like to see the additional details, they will be available in my office.  That concludes the Communications.  Thank you.
Communications From The Audience


-
none

Mrs. McNear:  I did want to point out one thing that was embedded in the seven or eight pages that we have here.  It is estimated that the cost for this "Save the Murals" program would be about $160,000.  Thank you.
Mr. Vanover:  At this point, we have come to a Public Hearing on the Community Development Block Grants Projects. 

Mr. Thamann:  This is the first of our two required Public Hearings for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program.  Our second one will be held at the next Council meeting.  Tonight the Administration has a few project ideas that we would like to share with you.  This evening we're hoping if anyone from Council has any ideas, they also share those and the public as well.  We are always looking for input from the public.  After this meeting, no decision will be made.  At the second Public Hearing, Council will have to make a floor vote to recommend what we submit to the County in the form of projects, funding levels, and then, by priority, and what years we're looking for.  That will have to be done at that second Public Hearing but tonight we'll go through the projects.  I'll give you an explanation of what we're looking at.  
Mayor Webster:  Did you formally open the Public Hearing?
Mr. Vanover:  We'll open the Public Hearing at this point in time. 
Mr. Thamann:  Here are potential projects for consideration:  the first one is a project that we have received funding for the last several years; that's our Home Improvement Program (HIP).  Those CDBG funds are used for qualified home improvement projects for our residents.    Since the inception, I know it's been very successful and proven to be beneficial both to the residents as well as the community, based on the investment that the residents have made on top of the funds that they've received for their property.  I apologize I don't have what we've used so far this year but I know there still are funds available if anyone is interested.  I don't have the total investment; I know we had that the last time but I'll try to have that for the next meeting as well.   What we're suggesting here is again a funding level of $15,000 for each year of the three-year program cycle.  This cycle starts March of 2015 and goes through 2017, so it's a three-year project cycle.  Are there any questions or comments on that one before I go to the next?
Mr. Vanover:  I see none.  

Mr. Thamann:  The next one was an idea that we are throwing out here and the more we looked into it, we're not 100% sold on it but it was something that we thought would help the handicapped and that was to replace the ramps throughout the City that are not handicapped-accessible or aren't updated with the domes.  After we looked into this a little deeper, we found out one of the problems is that if you replace one of those sidewalk ramps now and we come in shortly after and do a street improvement project, we may be ripping that ramp out anyway because of the grade change or something like that.  The other concern is, you put a ramp in, and based on the standards on how you have to angle it, we may be chasing the curb back further down the street than what we have to; therefore that ramp becomes a lot more expensive than we anticipated.  It sounds like a very practical project but we don't know what bang we will get for our buck.  But nevertheless, again, we were looking and we advertised this one in the newspaper for a funding level of $15,000 for each year of the three-year cycle in the Community Development Block Grant cycle.  Any question on #2?

Mr. Vanover:  Seeing none.  Continue.  Do you have something Mayor Webster?

Mayor Webster:  Why don't we go through the whole thing?  I have some comments as far as priorities.  
Mr. Thamann:  The third project we have here this evening is a project that was submitted back in 2011 but didn't get funded and that was the walking path in our park.  The last time around what we were looking at doing was just patching and sealing it informed me that since his tenure here, he said he believes it's been at least 20 years since that walking path was last overlaid and he said it was also widened at that time so you can get vehicles along there.  


The path is roughly a little over a mile long.  The estimated cost that the Parks and Recreation Department has received is $61,000; therefore, we were looking at a suggested funding level for CDBG funds at $30,000 in 2015 and again $30,000 in 2016.  That way we'll split the project up over two years then we'll have the whole track completed by the end of 2016 if we're successful in getting funds for it.  If there are no questions, I’ll move on to the next one.
The next project is another we submitted in 2011 and it was resurfacing the tennis and basketball courts.  Again we were not successful in receiving funding but we're looking at the possibility of doing this again.  The scope of this project would be to repair all the cracks on both the tennis courts and the basketball courts and then they would have it recoated and the courts would have a special surface put down with a sealer and then a paint.  The suggested funding level with this is $25,000; we're looking at Year 2017 for this.  In 2011 when we submitted this, we included the fence around the tennis courts but we did not include the fence this time.  Are there any questions on that project?
Mr. Diehl:  You said the price of that was $25,000?
Mr. Thamann:  Yes.

Mr. Diehl:  For both?

Mr. Thamann:  Yes.

Mr. Diehl:  Thank you.

Mrs. Emerson:  I have a question on that - If we resurface that tennis court, are we going to have to redo the gates also, because that's going to raise them up, will we be able to open and close the gates?
Mr. Thamann:  I'm not sure if they'll grind it down first or they're just going to overlay the tennis courts but Mr. Karle did tell me they'll fix all the cracks and also the low spots that are holding water.  So I don't think they're going to go real high with it but we may have to adjust the gate if it's dragging on the surface.  
Mrs. Emerson:  Thank you.

Mr. Thamann:  That funding level that we’re suggesting should come close to cover the cost of the project but we haven't bid it out yet; that's the estimate we received.  

Mr. Squires:  That’s a 2015 project?

Mr. Thamann:  2017.
Mr. Squires:  Okay, thank you. 
Mr. Thamann:  One more project.  We just want to throw this one out here and get some feedback from Council.  This came up today.  We received an email on our website from a mobility specialist that is working with a visually-impaired woman that lives at Baldwin Grove and requesting we put in a traffic light and pedestrian signals right there at Baldwin Grove so they can get from the west side of the street to the east side of the street to have access to the sidewalk.  The issue with that is, we looked at it a few years ago, we have concerns about putting a traffic light there because we can't just stop traffic.  Don, please correct me if I'm wrong, just to move pedestrian traffic, it wouldn't meet the warrants or standards.  We looked at other options; we added signage and an advanced warning signage a couple years ago to try to help with that crosswalk.  But now we are in this CDBG process, we thought we would look at it, and if you would go from Baldwin Grove up to where the sidewalks are near Maple Trace, it's roughly 1,000 feet of sidewalk that would have to be installed and we just didn’t know if there would be any interest.  If there is, we can go ahead and have our Engineer start looking at estimated costs.  We'll have to have those numbers next Council meeting if we are going to consider that as a potential project.  It will help the visually impaired.  Also, Baldwin Grove is a Metropolitan Housing Project, so I think it should well qualify for a project under the scope.   

Mr. Vanover:  Any discussion on that?  

Mayor Webster:  Jerry has given you six items the Administration has come up with.  Does Council have any they want to add to that?  
Mrs. Harlow:  Mayor, I had mentioned to you about the walking path down at the Community Center.  It is pretty rough in some of the areas.  Other areas look pretty good.  The day of our community festival, I saw a gentleman trip.  He was on the Lawnview side and it's real rough right before you turn the corner there, to go up to the storage garages.  He tripped and stumbled and luckily he didn’t fall, but that one area does need some attention whether we get the block grant or not.

Mayor Webster:  I was walking down there today and was looking, trying to ascertain how bad I thought it was.  I was almost convinced it wasn't that bad; about that time I tripped over something on the path and I figured, yes, we better do something with it.  I think there are areas that need attention.  If we haven't done the whole thing in 20 years we probably need to get that plugged in.  If we don't get funds here, get it into our Capital Improvement budget.  I think that track is used and we ought to try to maintain that.  Is there anything else we need to add to the list of six?

Mrs. Harlow:  I have five.

Mayor Webster:  Home Improvement, ADA ramp, walking track, tennis court fence, 

Mr. Thamann:  No, just the tennis courts resurfacing.

Mayor Webster:  We're taking the fence off then?
Mr. Thamann:  Yes.

Mayor Webster:  Sidewalk from Baldwin Grove up to Maple Trace, and resurface the tennis and basketball courts.  
Mrs. McNear:  I have a couple of items.  The good news is we’re a Tree City, USA, but it's also causing our sidewalks to heave and I wondered if we couldn't take a look at some assistance with redoing sidewalks.  Mayor, you're a huge walker as am I and the sidewalks are not a smooth path.  They're heaving because of the trees.
Mayor Webster:  That's a city-wide problem.

Mrs. McNear:  I know they're not going to pay for the whole thing but if we could get a portion of that to start a program, I think we need to take a look at those.  

The other thing I mentioned to you a couple of days ago is that when we were going through this process the last time, I thought this building could use some work on the outside, where the paint is starting to peel away from the metal.  Jerry and I talked about this a couple of years ago as well.  That's all I have.  Thank you.
Mrs. Emerson:  Just a couple of questions or suggestions.  There were some suggestions from some residents about some of the outlying parks.  Most of them carry the jungle gym sets that really lean toward the younger kids.  There were some suggestions about putting some equipment or something that would entertain the 11-12-13 - year old age group.  The only things I could come up with, I'm not real creative, was a tetherball.  There are also some comments about some of the basketball surfaces needed to be redone and netting on the poles needed some improvements in some of those outlying parks.  

Mayor Webster:  Which park, Mrs. Emerson?

Mrs. Emerson:  Underwood was one of them but the suggestion for the older kids could go to any of those parks.  Or maybe like some Frisbee golf baskets that the kids could throw in.  Obviously we wouldn't get an 18-hole course there, but if we could put in a couple of baskets that the kids could throw Frisbees in, because that's becoming pretty popular also.  A volleyball court, anything like that that would entertain the older kids and get them outside.

I had one comment on the road crossing.  I don't know if this works there, but instead of putting a traffic light in, at Bethesda we have a pedestrian crossing where you push the button on either side and they have actually sunk in lights that light up at the poles so the traffic is supposed to yield when those come on, then you wouldn't have to put a traffic light up and traffic would still yield to them crossing.  I don't know how expensive that is.

Mayor Webster:  You mean like the one over on Montgomery Road by Montgomery Inn, the lights embedded in the street?

Mrs. Emerson:  Exactly.  Are those expensive?  
Mayor Webster:  I've heard they are; I've never seen a figure on them.

Mrs. Emerson.  It's something we could look into.

Mayor Webster:  It still comes down to could we justify putting a traffic signal there and I think the answer to that is going to be no.  

Mrs. Emerson:  Right, but could we put a pedestrian crossing where it would be bright flashing lights and people would yield to that.

Mayor Webster:  I personally would rather get an estimate on extending that sidewalk north of Baldwin Grove down to Maple Trace so that they can cross at the existing crosswalk, which there's a light and everything else there, on Maple Trace, to get to the bus stop.  I would hate to rely on somebody stopping without a traffic signal.  
Mrs. Emerson:  I get it.  

Mayor Webster:  You only get one shot, at that age.  

Mrs. Emerson:  Unless you have nine lives.

Mrs. Harlow:  Because you can’t run.

Mayor Webster:  I hear what you're saying but I think we ought to try to see if it's within our financial means to provide those people a safe access across the street to the bus stop and to Maple Knoll if they want to go over there for some activity.

Mrs. Emerson:  Thank you.  
Mr. Vanover:  Just to add to that, having worked downtown or anyone that's spent any time downtown, the crosswalks are like a cattle crossing gate that just lines them up because people just blow through it; they don't pay any attention to it.  I think that's just part of our change in mode of transportation.
Mayor Webster:  What I would like to ask Council's approval on is getting the Engineer to work us up an estimate on that sidewalk, from Baldwin Grove up to Maple Trace and see where that can fit into the priorities.

Mr. Vanover:  Just curious, are those traffic crossing signals auditory, where the visually-impaired would hear them? 

Mayor Webster:  Do you want us to look into that possibility?
Mr. Vanover:  I think I would, if we have someone visually-impaired and obviously that's that area down there, an elderly population; if we're looking at what we might be able to do with it.  
Mr. Thamann:  On the audibles, working in North College Hill for about 18 years, Clovernook Center for the Blind was there so I was very close and even attached to this issue.  Having a sister that was disabled, I always felt for these people and tried to solve their problems and one of these is the same thing we're experiencing here. When we redid a lot of the traffic lights with the pedestrian signals, we did install the audibles.  The problem with those is they're hard to maintain; you have to send them out and the standards change constantly.  What the ones in North College Hill did was announced that it is now safe to cross Galbraith Road or Hamilton Avenue.  I forget who I was telling earlier today, these visually-impaired people have a big struggle with a right turn on red.  They get to the intersection and they listen for traffic to be stopped before they think it's safe to cross.  The secretary at Clovernook Center for the Blind begged me for years. She blindfolded me and said I'm going to walk you home how I have to get home, then we're going to come back to work.  We got up to one intersection, I think it was Galbraith and Goodman, and we couldn’t get across.  I finally said do you want me to take my blindfold off, she said yes, get us across.  Then I'm telling her you have this coming up, then this, and she asked if I was peeking. I said no, I just remembered visually where we're at. But as soon as we got to the Clovernook site, she took me in the back entrance of the building.  I was never in the back entrance before.  I was so lost, she scared me; I was like hold on.  So I feel for those people; I know what they're going through but at times we just can't come up with the solutions for them but we'll see what we can do. 
Mr. Diehl:  All five of the projects have a lot of merit.  Each one would be good on their own.  I totally agree with the Mayor about going out and getting a cost estimate on those sidewalks.  I think that's really key.  On the remaining four items, I think the walking path is the key one because it gets a tremendous amount of use.  I also have tripped on that many times.  That's my two cents.
Mr. Hawkins:  I would also put an emphasis on the walking path and resurfacing the tennis and basketball courts since those are things that we were looking at three years ago and continue to deteriorate and continue to be an issue, as well as obviously the Home Improvement Program is always a big deal and something people look forward to.  

Mayor Webster:  We just shared this list with you but I would really like to consider taking the ADA ramps off the list because I don't think we're going to get funded for it and, like Jerry said, there are problems even if we would get funding to do every one in the City, it would be a tremendous amount of money but then as we go in and do street programs, a lot of them we may have to rip out.  I just think there are other complications other than just putting in a ramp so I really would like to take that off the list.  Does anyone have a problem with taking it off the list?
Mr. Squires:  No, I was going to comment on that and say the same thing.

Mr. Vanover:  Mr. Squires, are you addressing that?

Mr. Squires:  Yes, Mr. President.  I agree with the Mayor.  I had turned on the light to say basically the same thing that the Mayor was saying.  That's a little risky there in terms of putting it in there and then turning around and having to tear it up.  That money could be used elsewhere.  I’d like to see that taken off.

Mr. Knox:  I agree with the Mayor.  We discussed that last night, about the walking path.  It's getting dangerous in some sections of it, particularly for someone who keeps their feet low to the ground, like I do when I walk.  I’ve stumbled a few times on that walking path so I'd like to see that be first.  I've heard quite a bit about the tennis courts from people that play tennis there and I really would like to see that be the second priority.  Thank you.  
Mr. Squires:  Mr. Knox, I tend to agree with you on that.  I'd like to see that moved up earlier than 2017, if we can do that.  I see more of a need for that, based upon the use for it, as I've been able to observe.  Certainly the ramps are out.  That would be a top priority for me; I don't play tennis but people see that, that’s the first thing they see come into the city, there on Lawnview.  I don't want it to be an eyesore.  Thank you.
Mr. Diehl:  I would take exception to the tennis courts. I don't play tennis either; however, I have made an intent that when people are playing tennis, I tell them I don’t know anything about your game, but how are the courts and they say they’re not that bad.  Not that I don't want them fixed; I do, but some of the other things I think should come first. Also, Mrs. Emerson had a good suggestion about looking for activities, particularly for the 9-12 year-olds in the parks - maybe we could ask the Recreation Center, Mr. Karle, to give us some ideas?  Thanks.
Mr. Vanover:  While we're at this point, is there anybody that objects to taking the handicapped ramps off the table?  No, okay, so they're off the table.
Mr. Hawkins:  Along the lines of what Mr. Diehl and Mrs. Emerson were referring to in terms of some different activities, and I haven't been there myself, but I’ve heard Blue Ash, with the new park they developed that used to be the airport, and I've seen some pictures, have some pretty incredible things there with regard to what kids can do.  My kids have been there; I have not had the privilege of checking all that stuff out, but it's pretty awesome so we may be able to get some ideas from that park as well.
Mrs. Harlow:  I have been to Summit Park and it is very nice but again, it is for a younger age group.  Our four-year old grandson, we could hardly get him away from there, but I don't think that it would not hold the interest of a preteen very long at all.

Mayor Webster:  The only other thing I've got in response to Mrs. McNear's painting the City building, I'm hard-pressed to think that's going to score real high, when we have these other projects that are going to help the general public and we're asking for money just to make our building look better; I think we need to plug it in to the Capital Improvement budget or for routine maintenance.  
Mrs. McNear:  Well, it needs to be on a list.

Mayor Webster:  I would propose we take it off this list.
Mrs. McNear:  That's fine.

Mayor Webster:  Does any one have a problem with that?  

Mr. Vanover:  No.

Mick Higgins:  One thing for the betterment of the community, especially in conjunction with the Health Department, is there are now some industrial mosquito removers.  These are not the "we're going around fogging entire neighborhoods with chemicals", but it uses a variety of attractants to eradicate them from a community.  The bigger industrial ones are capable of removing mosquitoes from several acres.  They roughly run about $1,000 a piece, capable of doing three acres.  If there was a possibility for the Board of Health to get three or four of those to move around to the various different parks and neighborhoods.  It is Springdale; we do have a very high water table and in some areas, from spring to mid-fall, especially where I live, I can't let me kids out at dusk or in the morning; they're just chewed up.  I can't believe I'm the only one in Springdale.  I see some people nodding their heads, going yeah, it's an issue.  If we could get some of those tied into the Board of Health, same way that they have the live raccoon traps; maybe we could call in to Public Works, have one set up in a neighborhood, if someone will allow one in their yard.  They run for about two weeks to reach a point of eradication and it's supposed to take about a full month before they're reproducing.  
Mayor Webster:  So exactly what are they?

Mick Higgins:  They're designed to catch them; most of them use a method of producing CO2 as an attractant, to attract mosquitoes in and they can use some, not ultraviolet but they're red lights.

Mr. Vanover:  Infrared. 

Mick Higgins:  Infrared lights that are attractants and it actually captures them inside a filter to achieve eradication.  We've started looking into them; we were thinking about buying one just for our house and it's a possibility that we might but to have some to be able to put around the City, because it's good for our house but as soon as we go to Underwood Park or somewhere where there's a high water table or some standing water.  I think even around here, if people are walking the track at night, to be able to put a couple out at the park for a couple of weeks to help eliminate them, especially before the ComeUnity fest or other events, I think they could be moved around the City without the use of pesticides.  They only operate with Carbon Dioxide.  So that would be my suggestion, to take a look at that and I can provide some information about the ones we were looking at.  There are various sizes for the amount of area it will cover.  The one to do about our yard was about $350, but again, they had bigger ones capable of doing larger areas to help with the mosquito eradication.  Especially with the West Nile Virus still being an issue.  I don't think it's transmittable by mosquitoes, but Ebola is now being found down in Texas.  I think getting the mosquito population under control can’t be a bad thing.

Mr. Vanover:  I recall, it's been several years back, one of our former Health Commissioner actually brought a trap and set up in the back yard, looking for, it's wasn't the West Nile but it was one of the mosquito-born; they were trying to get a sample for it and they used a small piece of dry ice; it hung back there because they're attracted to carbon dioxide.  Matter of fact, I was surprised this summer, I noticed something when we were in Florida that I hadn't noticed before, that there are home mosquito, much like you would call a pest, to come in and spray and fog.  I was on a job site over in Terrace Park and lo and behold, the bug guy pulled up and went through the front, they had backpack sprayers and went through the yard.  Now how effective that is, I have no idea but it made sense you would see it in Florida but it really kind of took me back here because I've never seen it up here.  It is an issue anywhere.  That’s my two cents on that.  Other comments?  Mr. Diehl, you have your finger poised?
Mr. Diehl:  Yes.  I think this subject maybe should be referred to the Health Department and ask for their input on this.

Mayor Webster:  We'll put it on the agenda for next Thursday.  
Mr. Thamann:  Just one point, we had mentioned the Municipal Building painting and now this mosquito process here; we need to make sure those type of projects we're considering meet the qualifications and guidelines to get funding for them and I don't know if this one would; I will have to research this one a little closer to see if it would be eligible for funding.      

Mrs. Emerson:  I'm thinking the mosquito thing we could get the Health Commissioner to draw up some grant or something; she's good at that, and get funding through that for the mosquitoes.  

Mayor Webster:  We'll talk about it at the Board of Health.  

Mr. Vanover:  Mr. Thamann, what does Administration need from us at this point?
Mr. Thamann:  We need nothing further.  Like I said earlier, this is the first of two required Public Hearings.  So if there are no other comments, you can close the Public Hearing if you so choose, or continue it.  We'll have the second Public Hearing on October 15th and at that meeting we will have to finalize the projects that we want to submit to the County and the funding levels. 

Mrs. Harlow:  I believe the Mayor wants Council's permission for the City Engineer to look at the sidewalk cost?
Mr. Vanover:  Does anyone object?

Mayor Webster:  I think everyone nodded in agreement on that.  

Mr. Vanover:  Is there anybody else that would want to address Council on this Public Hearing?  No, okay, we'll close the Public Hearing at this point.  
Ordinances and Resolutions
RESOLUTION No. R13-2014

ACCEPTING THE AMOUNTS AND RATES AS DETERMINED BY THE BUDGET COMMISSION AND AUTHORIZING THE NECESSARY TAX LEVIES AND CERTIFYING THEM TO THE COUNTY AUDITOR

Mrs. Harlow made a motion to adopt; Mr. Knox seconded.  Resolution R13-2014 passed with seven affirmative votes.
Old Business





Mrs. Harlow:  This is not really old business but we’ve discussed it before and I wanted to know what the status of the Veteran’s Memorial waterfall is.  It seems to be off again.  Is it still broken?  

Mr. Thamann:  From my understanding, it's back up and functioning so I'd have to check to see if they just have it turned off for this time of year or if there is a problem with it but they said the pump has been fixed and should be operational.  
Mrs. Harlow:  Could you check it because I’ve been watching it the last couple of weeks and it hasn't been working. 

Mr. Thamann:  I will check with Mr. Huxsoll tomorrow morning.
Mrs. Harlow:  Thank you.

New Business

Mr. Thamann:  Just a couple of items I had in the Report on Pending Legislation for our upcoming meeting on October 15th.  One is on the Ohio Municipal League (OML) Group Retrospect Rating Program - we'll be requesting legislation at the next meeting for consideration to participate in a Group Retrospective Rating Program.  OML started their own Group Rating Program after MVRMA quit doing theirs and we joined OML in 2012.  We don’t qualify for the Group Rating Program, which is the better of the two Group Programs, but we do qualify for the Group Retrospect Program.  We've been successful in these group-rated programs over the years; this group's target reimbursement over the three-year period is $93,000 that we would get back in premiums; that's the target they're trying to hit.  The maximum savings could be up to a littler over $184,000 over three years that we could receive.  If that group does very poorly, we do have a maximum assessment that we could be assessed at a little over $34,000.  We've never been close to the assessments.  By participating in these, we've received reimbursements back.  We'll have an ordinance for consideration at the next meeting.  
On the Boggs/Sweeney Roadway Improvement Project, Mr. Parham reported last time we filed a SCIP application for funding the Boggs/Sweeney Roadway Project.  Along with that, we filed for funding through a new funding source through the Ohio Department of Transportation's Office of Jobs and Commerce and that was for $100,000.  We were successful in securing those funds but in order to do that, the State funds are passed down to the County and they go to the Hamilton County Transportation Improvement District.  They monitor and manage the funds for the State, so the City will have to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with Hamilton County Transportation Improvement District in order to receive those funds.  So we'll have legislation on the agenda for the next meeting for consideration to enter into that Agreement.

Mr. Vanover:  Just out of curiosity, are there any handling charges assessed?

Mr. Thamann:  No, but I can give you all the acronyms that we've learned by filling this one out.  
Mayor Webster:  Is that to get the $100,000?

Mr. Thamann:  Yes.  One other one, in the report, we will have legislation it looks like at the next meeting for a Job Retention and Incentive Agreement.  Medisync Midwest is looking at moving into Executive Center III, occupying roughly 17,000 s.f., bringing in, by I think it's February of 2015, 65 new full-time jobs; by the end of their ten-year term, they're going to have 140 full-time positions.  We will have a request for legislation with an emergency clause to authorize that agreement with Medisync Midwest.
Mayor Webster:  This is one we previously discussed with Council; it's been some time, maybe six to eight months ago.

Mr. Thamann:  If I can, I'll add one more thing.  Civil Service Commission is meeting tomorrow evening at 7:00 p.m. in the Administrative Conference Room.  
Mrs. McNear:  Council, you have a Liquor License request.  This is for Gilligan Oil Company at 11595 Princeton Pike.  This is a new license and it is a C2 Permit Class, which is "Wine and certain prepackaged mixed drinks in sealed containers for carry out only until 1:00 a.m."  Are there any objections?  Hearing none, I will go ahead and have the paperwork filed.  Thank you.  
Meetings and Announcements

Mayor Webster:  I'd like to remind everyone that the Springdale Fire Department has their 24th Annual Open House this Saturday from 10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.  You can learn the proper use of fire extinguishers and the importance of smoke and carbon monoxide detectors.  Representatives from the Hamilton County Communications Center, the Shriner's Burn Hospital for Children, Council on Aging, the Mercy Health Mammogram, and the Springdale Police Department will also be in attendance.  
Mr. Hawkins:  Rules and Law Committee will meet on October 7th at 11:30 a.m. in the Conference Room Adjacent to Council Chambers.  Board of Zoning Appeals will meet on October 21st at 7:00 p.m. in these Chambers.  
Mr. Squires:  The Springdale Board of Health will meet Thursday, October 9th, at the meeting room adjoining these chambers, 7:00 p.m.
Mrs. Harlow:  Planning will meet on October 14th, 7:00 p.m. in these chambers. 

Communications from the Audience 



- 
none
Update on Legislation still in Development

Mr. Hawkins:  As you review your Internal Memorandums, Item I was disposed with Resolution No. R13-2014, which passed with a 7-0 vote.  Items II, III, IV, V, and VI are all forthcoming.  Item VII was dealt with in part with regard to having one of the Public Hearings regarding the Block Grant; the second one to take place on October 15th.
Recap of Legislative Items Requested for Next Council Meeting
Mr. Hawkins:  There’s a request for a Job Incentive Program with an Emergency Clause.  We also have an Ordinance Authorizing the City to Participate in a Group Retrospective Rating Program for Worker’s Compensation for 2015 and Declaring an Emergency.
  There's also a request for an Ordinance Authorizing the Mayor and Clerk of Council/Finance Director to Enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Hamilton County Transportation Improvement District to Further Enhance and Fund a Joint Transportation Improvement Project and Declaring that an Emergency, and an Ordinance Authorizing the Mayor and Clerk of Council/Finance Director to Enter into an Agreement, as I indicated, with Medisync for the job retention program.  I think that's everything. 

Council adjourned at 7:50 p.m.








Respectfully submitted,








Kathy McNear







Clerk of Council/Finance Director


Tom Vanover, President of Council
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